

00806412 B: 1646 P: 68

B: 1646 P: 68 Fee \$150.00

Carri R. Jeffries, Iron County Recorder - Page 1 of 21

06/16/2023 12:57:10 PM By: COTTONWOOD TITLE INSURANCE AGENCY,
INC.

A-1166-0001-0000 through A-1166-0065-0000, inclusive

BYLAWS

OF

ASPEN MEADOWS SOUTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

Table of Contents

	Page
ARTICLE I NAME, PRINCIPAL OFFICE, AND DEFINITIONS	1
1.1 Name.....	1
1.2 Principal Office	1
1.3 Controlling Law and Definitions.....	1
ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION: MEMBERSHIP, VOTING AND MEETINGS.....	1
2.1 Membership in the Association	1
2.2 Votes in the Association; Voting Procedures.....	1
2.3 Transfer of Association Membership.....	2
2.4 Membership and Ownership Rights	2
2.5 Annual Meeting	2
2.6 Special Meetings	2
2.7 Waiver of Notice	2
2.8 Members of Record	3
2.9 Quorum.....	3
2.10 Business	3
2.11 Proxies	3
2.12 Conduct of Meetings	3
2.13 Action Without Meeting.....	3
2.14 Majority Vote	3
2.15 Adjourned Meetings	4
2.16 Minutes, Presumption of Notice.....	4
ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS	4
3.1 Role of the Association	4
3.2 Number and Powers	4
For purposes of these Bylaws, “Class B Control Period” means the period of time set forth in Section 15.4(b) of the Declaration.	5
3.3 Composition	5
3.4 Election and Term of Office.....	5
3.5 Removal of Directors and Vacancies	5
3.6 Compensation.....	6
3.7 Regular Meetings.....	6
3.8 Special Meetings	6
3.9 Waiver of Notice	6
3.10 Quorum, Voting and Adjournment.....	7
3.11 Open Meetings.....	7
3.12 Action Without Meeting.....	7
3.13 Telephonic Conference.....	8
3.14 Fiscal Year.....	8
3.15 Right of the Class B Member	8

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS	8
4.1 Designation	8
4.2 Election and Term	8
4.3 Removal and Vacancies	8
4.4 President	8
4.5 Vice President	8
4.6 Secretary	8
4.7 Treasurer	9
4.8 Resignation	9
4.9 Execution of Documents	9
4.10 Statements of Unpaid Community Expenses	9
4.11 Committees	9
ARTICLE V ENFORCEMENT	9
5.1 Board's General Rights of Enforcement of Provisions of this and Other Instruments	9
5.2 Abatement and Enjoinment of Violations by Owners	10
5.3 Fine for Violation of Governing Documents	10
5.4 Rental or Lease of Dwellings by Owners	10
5.5 Specific Enforcement	11
5.6 Notice	11
5.7 Additional Enforcement Rights	11
ARTICLE VI INDEMNIFICATION	12
6.1 Indemnification of Directors and Officers	12
6.2 Advances of Expenses	12
6.3 Scope of Indemnification	12
6.4 Other Rights and Remedies	12
6.5 Insurance	12
6.6 Severability	12
ARTICLE VII RECORDS	13
7.1 Records and Audits	13
7.2 Examination	13
7.3 Inspection by Directors	13
7.4 Records	13
ARTICLE VIII COMMUNITY EXPENSES ASSESSMENTS	13
ARTICLE IX AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS	14
9.1 By Members	14
9.2 Limitation on Amendments	14
ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS	14
10.1 Notices	14
10.2 Conflicts	14

10.3	Waiver	14
10.4	Severability	14
10.5	Captions	15
10.6	Use of Technology	15
10.7	Effective Date	15
10.8	Limitation of Liability	15
10.9	Seal	15

BYLAWS
OF
ASPEN MEADOWS SOUTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I
NAME, PRINCIPAL OFFICE, AND DEFINITIONS

1.1 Name. The name of the owners association shall be Aspen Meadows Southeast Neighborhood Community Association, Inc., hereinafter the "Association."

1.2 Principal Office. The principal office of the Association shall be located at PO Box 190249 Brian Head, Utah 84719-0249, or at any other place as may be designated in the most recent document on file with the Utah Department of Commerce, Division of Corporations and Commercial Code (the "Division") providing information regarding the principal office of the Association. The Association shall maintain at its principal office a copy of such corporate records as may be required by § 16-6a-1601 of the Nonprofit Act (as defined below).

1.3 Controlling Law and Definitions. These Bylaws shall operate under the Utah Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, § 16-6a-701, *et seq.*, Utah Code Ann., as amended ("Nonprofit Act"). The words used in these Bylaws shall be given their normal, commonly understood definitions; provided that, except as otherwise defined in these Bylaws, capitalized terms shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Community Declaration for Aspen Meadows Southeast Neighborhood, a Planned Unit Development, as may be amended from time to time, recorded in the official records of Iron County, Utah on JUNE 16, 2023 as Entry No. 00806412 in Book 1646, beginning on Page 1 (the "Declaration") unless the context indicates otherwise.

ARTICLE II
ASSOCIATION: MEMBERSHIP, VOTING AND MEETINGS

2.1 Membership in the Association. The Association shall be a nonprofit Utah corporation charged with the duties and vested with the powers prescribed by law and set forth in the Declaration and these Bylaws. The Association shall have two classes of membership, Class A and Class B, as more fully set forth in Section 3.4. Every Owner of a Lot shall be a Member of the Association (individually, a "Class A Member" and, collectively, the "Class A Members").

2.2 Votes in the Association: Voting Procedures. The voting rights of the Members shall be as set forth in the Declaration and in these Bylaws, and such voting rights provisions are specifically incorporated by this reference. Members may vote in person, by proxy, or by written ballot in accordance with such rules and procedures as the Board may adopt. In the event there is more than one Owner of a particular Lot, the vote relating to such Lot shall be exercised by a majority of such Owners represented by one Owner as may be determined among themselves. In the event more than one Owner attempts to cast the vote or votes for a particular Lot, the vote or votes for that Lot shall be deemed void and shall not be counted. A vote cast at any meeting by any of such Owners shall be conclusively presumed to be the vote attributable to the Lot concerned unless an objection is immediately made by another Owner of the same Lot at the time the vote is cast. In the event such an objection is made, the vote involved shall not be counted for any purpose whatsoever until the matter is resolved to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board. In such case, the Board may, but shall not be required to, apportion such Lot's vote among the

Owners thereof. A change in the ownership of a Lot shall be effective for voting purposes from the time the deed or other instrument effecting such change is recorded in the official records of Iron County, Utah; provided that the Board shall be given written notice of such change and provided satisfactory evidence thereof.

2.3 Transfer of Association Membership. The rights and obligations of any Member other than Declarant shall not be assigned, transferred, pledged, conveyed or alienated in any way, except upon transfer of ownership of an Owner's Lot, and then only to the transferee of ownership, legal and equitable, of the Lot. A transfer of ownership of a Lot may be effected by deed, intestate succession, testamentary disposition, foreclosure or such other legal process as is now in effect or as may hereafter be established under or pursuant to applicable law. Any attempt to make a prohibited transfer shall be void. Any transfer of ownership of a Lot shall operate to transfer the Membership appurtenant to said Lot to the new Owner thereof. Each purchaser shall notify the Association of his, her or its purchase of a Lot and provide satisfactory evidence thereof.

2.4 Membership and Ownership Rights. Each Member shall have the respective rights, duties and obligations set forth in the Declaration and these Bylaws and such other rights, duties and obligations as are set forth in any other Governing Documents, as the same may be amended from time to time.

2.5 Annual Meeting. There shall be an annual meeting of the Association on the day and at the time and reasonable place at the Property, or some other reasonable location in Iron County unless a meeting at another location would significantly reduce the cost to the Association and/or inconvenience to the Members, as may be designated by written notice by the Board. The Board shall give to each Member entitled to vote at a meeting notice consistent with these Bylaws in a fair and reasonable manner. Any notice that conforms to the requirements of this Section 2.5 is deemed fair and reasonable, but other means of giving notice may also be fair and reasonable when all the circumstances are considered. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, notice of the annual meeting to the Members shall be hand delivered or sent via first-class or registered mail postage prepaid at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for said meeting. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and a brief statement of the matters on the agenda which the Board intends to present or believes others will present for action by the Members, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Governing Documents, any budgetary matters and any proposal to remove an officer or a Director. Such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail to each Member at such Member's address as shown in the records of the Association or to any other mailing address designated in writing by the Member. When giving written notice of an annual or special meeting of the Members, the Board shall give notice of a matter a Member intends to raise at the meeting if (a) requested in writing to do so by a person entitled to call a special meeting; and (b) the request is received by the Secretary or President at least ten (10) days before the Association gives notice of the meeting.

2.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Association may be called by the President, a majority of the Board, or Members representing at least twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the total votes allocated to Members of the Association ("Total Votes of the Association"). Special meetings may be held at a reasonable place in the Property, or some other reasonable location in Iron County unless a meeting at another location would significantly reduce the cost to the Association and/or inconvenience to the Members, to consider matters which, by the terms of these Bylaws, require the approval of all or some of the Members or for any other reasonable purpose. Notice of the special meeting shall be delivered to each Member in the same manner as the notice of annual meetings pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.5 above.

2.7 Waiver of Notice. Waiver of notice of a regular or special meeting of the Members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any Member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the

Members, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by a Member shall be deemed waiver by such Member of notice of the time, date, and place thereof, unless such Member specifically objects to lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order. Attendance at any meeting also shall be deemed waiver of notice of all business transacted unless an objection on the basis of lack of proper notice is raised before the business is put to a vote.

2.8 Members of Record. For the purpose of determining Members entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of Members, or in order to make a determination of Members for any other proper purpose, the Board shall fix in advance a date as the record date for any such determination of Members. The record date shall not be more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the particular meeting of Members or the date on which the particular action requiring such determination of Members is to be taken, as applicable, unless otherwise extended by the Board. If no record date is fixed, the record date for such determination of Members entitled to vote shall be four o'clock in the afternoon on the day before the day on which notice of the meeting is mailed or delivered. When a determination of Members entitled to vote at any meeting of Members has been made as provided in this Section 2.8, such determination shall apply to any continuation of such meeting following an adjournment.

2.9 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a quorum shall be those Members present in person or by proxy.

2.10 Business. The Members present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment.

2.11 Proxies. Members may vote in person by proxy in accordance with § 16-6a-712 of the Nonprofit Act; provided, however, that no proxy shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the Owner or his, her or its duly authorized attorney-in-fact, dated, and filed with the Secretary of the Association prior to any meeting for which it is to be effective. A proxy is valid for 11 months from its date of execution, unless a different time period is expressly provided in the proxy. An appointment of a proxy is effective against the Association when received by the Secretary, including receipt by the Secretary of an electronic transmission or receipt immediately before the meeting begins. An appointment of proxy is revocable by the Member. An appointment of a proxy is revoked by the Member appointing the proxy attending any meeting and voting in person or signing and delivering to the Secretary a writing stating that the appointment of the proxy is revoked or a subsequent appointment form.

2.12 Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association, and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting, as well as a record of all transactions occurring at the meeting. Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association's meeting when not in conflict with these Bylaws.

2.13 Action Without Meeting. Any action which, under the provisions of the Nonprofit Act may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting in the manner permitted by the Nonprofit Act.

2.14 Majority Vote. As used in these Bylaws, the term "majority" shall mean those votes, Members, or other groups as the context may indicate totaling more than fifty percent (50%) of the total eligible number. The vote of a majority of the Members present in person at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all Members for all purposes, except where a higher percentage vote is required in the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Nonprofit Act or by other applicable Utah law.

2.15 Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of Members cannot be held, the Members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting and reconvene it at a time not less than five (5) days nor more than thirty (30) days following the time the original meeting was called. Such adjourned meetings may be held without further notice if the date, time, and place the meeting is to be reconvened is announced at the meeting at which such adjournment is taken.

2.16 Minutes, Presumption of Notice. Minutes or a similar record of the proceedings of meetings of Members, when signed by the President or Secretary, shall be presumed truthful evidence of the matters set forth therein. A recitation in the minutes of any such meeting that notice of the meeting was properly given shall be prima facie evidence that such notice was given.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1 Role of the Association. The Association shall govern the Property and shall do such things as are within its powers and as may reasonably be required to maintain the Property and its common areas as an attractive and desirable community, including without limitation the authority to adopt rules governing use of the common areas, architectural standards, and other rules as may be beneficial to the Property ("Association Rules"). The Association may exercise any expressed or implied right or privilege given to the Association expressly by the Governing Documents or any other right or privilege reasonably necessary to effectuate any such right or privilege.

3.2 Number and Powers. The affairs of the Association shall be conducted by a Board of Directors ("Board") consisting of either three (3) or five (5) directors ("Directors"), as determined by the Owners from time to time, and such officers as the Board may elect or appoint in accordance with the Articles and these Bylaws as the same may be amended from time to time. The Board shall initially consist of three (3) Directors. During the "Class B Control Period" (as defined below), directors appointed by the Class B Member, i.e., the Declarant, shall be appointed by the Class B Member acting in its sole discretion and shall serve at the pleasure of the Class B Member. The Board may also appoint various committees and appoint a Manager who shall, subject to the direction of the Board, be responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Property and the Association. The Declarant, or an affiliate of the Declarant, may be employed as Manager. The Board shall determine the reasonable compensation to be paid to the Manager. The Board's responsibilities shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

- 3.2.1 preparing and administering an operational budget;
- 3.2.2 establishing and administering an adequate reserve fund;
- 3.2.3 scheduling and conducting the annual meeting and other meetings of the Members;
- 3.2.4 collecting and enforcing the Community Expenses;
- 3.2.5 accounting functions and maintaining records;
- 3.2.6 promulgation and enforcement of the Association Rules;
- 3.2.7 maintenance of the common areas; and
- 3.2.8 all the other duties imposed upon the Board pursuant to the Governing Documents, including enforcement thereof.

For purposes of these Bylaws, "Class B Control Period" means the period of time set forth in Section 15.4(b) of the Declaration.

3.3 Composition. Each Director shall have one (1) equal vote. The Directors need not be Members. In the case of an Owner that is not a natural person, one (1) officer, director, member, partner or trust officer of such Owner may be designated by such Owner as eligible to serve as a Director; such designation must be provided to the Association and may only be changed once each calendar year or at such time as the designee is no longer an officer, director, member, partner or trust officer of the Owner.

3.4 Election and Term of Office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws:

3.4.1 Within 90 days after termination of the Class B Control Period, the President shall call for an election by which the Class A Members shall be entitled to elect five (5) directors, who shall serve as at-large directors. The directors elected by the Class A Members shall serve until the first annual meeting following the termination of the Class B Control Period. If such annual meeting is scheduled to occur within 90 days after termination of the Class B Control Period, this subsection shall not apply and directors shall be elected in accordance with subsection (b) below.

3.4.2 At the first annual meeting after the termination of the Class B Control Period, five (5) directors shall be elected by the Class A Members, with the three directors receiving the largest number of votes being elected for a term of two (2) years and the remaining two directors being elected for a term of one year.

Upon the expiration of the term of office of each director elected by the Class A Members, a successor shall be elected to serve a term of two years. The directors elected by the Class A Members shall hold office until their respective successors have been elected.

3.4.3 Thereafter, the Board shall be elected by the Members. The terms of the Directors shall be staggered so that the terms of one of the Directors will expire and successors will be elected each year by the Members as provided by these Bylaws. Unless a shorter term is required to create staggered terms, Directors shall serve terms of three (3) years. Directors shall serve until their successors have been duly elected and qualified unless removed pursuant to Section 3.5 below. Directors may be elected to serve any number of consecutive terms. Nominations for election to the Board shall be made by resolution of the Board or by a petition filed with the Secretary of the Association at least fifteen (15) days prior to the Members' meeting. Such petition shall be signed by three (3) or more Owners and signed by the nominee named therein indicating his or her willingness to serve as a member of the Board, if elected. All candidates shall have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the Members and to solicit votes. There shall be no cumulative voting. The candidate(s) receiving the most votes shall be elected.

3.5 Removal of Directors and Vacancies. Any Director may be removed, with or without cause, by the vote of Members holding a majority of the Total Votes of the Association. Any Director whose removal is sought shall be given notice prior to any meeting called for that purpose. Upon removal of a Director, a successor shall be elected by the Members to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such Director.

3.5.1 Any Director elected by the Members who has three (3) consecutive unexcused absences from Board meetings, or who is more than thirty (30) days delinquent in the payment of any Community Expenses or other charge due the Association, may be removed by the vote of a majority of the Directors, and a successor may be appointed by a majority vote of the Directors to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.

3.5.2 In the event of the death, disability, or resignation of a Director elected by the Class A Members, the Board may declare a vacancy and appoint a successor to fill the vacancy until the next annual meeting, at which time the Class A Members may elect a successor for the remainder of the term. Any Director appointed by the Board shall be selected from among the Members.

This Section shall not apply to directors appointed by the Class B Member. The Class B Member shall be entitled to appoint a successor to fill any vacancy on the Board resulting from the death, disability or resignation of a director appointed by the Class B Member.

3.6 Compensation. No Director shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such unless approved by Members representing a majority of the Total Votes in the Association at a regular or special meeting. Any Director may be reimbursed by the Association for reasonable expenses for the Director's attendance at the Board meetings, or any other expenses incurred on behalf of the Association upon approval of a majority of the Total Votes of the Association. Any Directors may be employed by the Association in another capacity and receive compensation for such employment; provided that such employment shall be approved by vote or in writing by all Directors not including the Director to be employed.

3.7 Regular Meetings. The Board meetings shall be held at least annually at such times and places within the Property, or some other reasonable and suitable location in Iron County, unless a meeting at another location would significantly reduce the cost to the Association and/or the inconvenience to the Directors, as the Board shall determine. The Board shall give to each Director entitled to vote at a regular meeting notice of the meeting in a fair and reasonable manner. Any notice that conforms to the requirements of this Section 3.7 is deemed fair and reasonable, but other means of giving notice may also be fair and reasonable when all the circumstances are considered. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, notice to each Director of the place, date, and time of the regular meeting is deemed fair and reasonable if the Board notifies each Director via electronic transmission or first-class or registered mail postage prepaid no fewer than three (3) business days prior to the time of the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, with first-class postage thereon prepaid. No notice shall be necessary to the newly elected Board in order to legally constitute such meeting, provided a majority of the Directors are present. The Board may set a schedule of additional regular meetings by resolution, and no further notice is necessary to constitute regular meetings.

3.8 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or written notice signed by any two (2) Directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. Special meetings shall be held within the Property, or some other reasonable location in Iron County, unless a meeting at another location would significantly reduce the cost to the Association and/or inconvenience to the Directors. Written notice of any special meeting shall be sent to all Directors in the same manner as regular meetings as set forth in Section 3.7 above. If an agenda is prepared for a special meeting, the meeting shall be restricted to discussions of those items listed on the agenda. The notice of a special meeting need not describe the purpose of the special meeting unless otherwise required by the Nonprofit Act or these Bylaws.

3.9 Waiver of Notice. The transactions at any Board meeting, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if (i) a quorum is present, and (ii) either before or after the meeting each of the Directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting also shall be deemed given to any Director who attends the meeting without protesting before or at its commencement about the lack of adequate notice.

3.10 Quorum, Voting and Adjournment. A majority of the Directors then serving shall constitute a quorum, and if a quorum is present (and except as otherwise specified in these Bylaws), the decision of a majority of those present shall be the act of the Board. If less than a quorum is present at the meeting, the meeting may be adjourned from time to time without further notice other than an announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. No Director may vote or act by proxy at any Board meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other term or condition of these Bylaws, the Declaration or the Articles, neither the Declarant, the Members nor the Board shall have the right, without the consent or ratification of not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the Class A Members:

3.10.1 Do any act to make it impossible to carry on the ordinary business of the Association;

3.10.2 Confess a judgment against the Association;

3.10.3 Assign rights in specific Association property for other than an Association purpose;

3.10.4 Admit a person as a Member, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws;

3.10.5 Continue the business of the Association after its bankruptcy, dissolution, cancellation or other cessation to exist;

3.10.6 Incur indebtedness, including the opening of a credit line, in any one fiscal year, in excess of FIFTY THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS (\$50,000.00), other than normal accounts payable and/or indebtedness incurred in the ordinary course of business;

3.10.7 Sell, exchange, lease, mortgage, pledge, transfer, or otherwise encumber or dispose of any portion of the property or assets of the Association, except in the ordinary course of business;

3.10.8 Authorize any single capital expenditure in excess of the budgets or reserves previously approved in accordance with the terms and conditions of these Bylaws; and/or

3.10.9 Amend, supplement or modify the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or the Declaration.

3.11 Open Meetings. The Directors shall act only as a Board, and individual Directors shall have no powers as such. Regular and special meetings of the Board shall be open to all Members of the Association, and the Board shall give notice of all meetings to the Members at least five (5) days prior to such meeting. The Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum of its Directors, adjourn the meeting and reconvene in executive session, excluding non-Members in attendance, to discuss and vote upon matters of a sensitive nature, such as personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, and similar orders of business.

3.12 Action Without Meeting. Any action that is required or permitted to be taken at a Board meeting may be taken without a meeting if all of the Board or all members of a committee established for such purposes, as the case may be, severally or collectively consent in writing to any action taken or to be taken by the Association, and the number of the Directors constitutes a quorum. Action taken pursuant to this Section 3.12 shall be a valid corporate action as though it had been authorized at a meeting of the Board or the committee, as the case may be. The Secretary shall file these consents with the minutes of the Board meetings.

3.13 Telephonic Conference. Directors or any committee members may participate in a meeting of the Board or committee by means of telephonic conference or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

3.14 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be set by resolution of the Board. In the absence of a Board resolution, the fiscal year shall be the calendar year.

3.15 Right of the Class B Member. The Class B Member shall be given prior written notice of all meetings and proposed actions approved at meetings (or by written consent in lieu of a meeting) of the Association, the Board or any committee. Such notice shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by personal delivery at the address it has registered with the Secretary of the Association, which notice shall, except in the case of the regular meetings held pursuant to the Bylaws, set forth in reasonable particularity the agenda to be followed at such meeting. The Class B Member, its representatives or agents may make its concerns, thoughts, and suggestions known to the Board and/or the members of the subject committee.

ARTICLE IV OFFICERS

4.1 Designation. The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board. The Board may appoint other officers as it finds necessary and such officers shall have the authority to perform the duties prescribed by the Board. Any two offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.

4.2 Election and Term. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board. They shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

4.3 Removal and Vacancies. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled at any regular meeting of the Board or at any special meeting of the Board called for that purpose, for the unexpired portion of the term.

4.4 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board. The President shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of president of a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the Members from time to time as the President may decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. The President may fulfill the role of Treasurer in the absence of the Treasurer. The President may cause to be prepared and may execute amendments, attested by the Secretary, to the Declaration and these Bylaws on behalf of the Association, following authorization or approval of the particular amendment as applicable.

4.5 Vice President. The Vice President shall perform the functions of the President in his or her absence or inability to serve.

4.6 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Members and the Board. The Secretary shall have charge of the Association's books and papers as the Board may direct and shall perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary of a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah. The Secretary may cause to be prepared and may attest to execution by the President of amendments to the Declaration and these Bylaws on behalf of the Association,

following authorization or approval of the particular amendment as applicable. The Secretary may fulfill the role of Treasurer in the absence of the Treasurer.

4.7 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the Association's funds and securities, for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements and for the preparation of all required financial data. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in depositories designated by the Board and shall perform all the duties incident to the office of treasurer of a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah. The Treasurer may endorse on behalf of the Association, for collection only, checks, notes and other obligations and shall deposit the same and all monies in the name of and to the credit of the Association in banks designated by the Board. Except for reserve funds described below, the Treasurer may have custody of and shall have the power to endorse for transfer, on behalf of the Association, stock, securities or other investment instruments owned or controlled by the Association or as fiduciary for others. Reserve funds of the Association shall be deposited in segregated accounts or in prudent investments, as the Board decides. Funds may be withdrawn from these reserves for the purposes for which they were deposited, by check or order, authorized by the Treasurer, and executed by two (2) Directors.

4.8 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

4.9 Execution of Documents. The Board, except as in these Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, committee member, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or in any amount.

4.10 Statements of Unpaid Community Expenses. The Treasurer, manager, or in their absence, any officer having access to the books and records of the Association may prepare, certify, and execute statements of unpaid Community Expenses ("Statements"). A Statement shall be issued with respect to a Lot upon the written request of the Owner thereof. The Association may charge a reasonable fee for preparing Statements. The amount of this fee and the time of payment shall be established by resolution of the Board. The Statement is binding in favor of any person who relies in good faith on the Statement upon the remaining Owners, manager and Board. Unless the manager or the Board complies with a request for a Statement from an Owner within ten (10) days of its receipt of the same, any unpaid Community Expenses that became due prior to the date of the Owner's request was made is subordinate to a lien held by the person requesting the Statement.

4.11 Committees. The Board may appoint such committees as it deems appropriate to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as the Board may designate by resolution. Each committee shall operate in accordance with the terms of such resolution.

ARTICLE V ENFORCEMENT

5.1 Board's General Rights of Enforcement of Provisions of this and Other Instruments. The Board, as the agent and representative of the Owners and Members, shall have the right to enforce, by any proceeding at law or in equity, the covenants set forth in the Declaration, these Bylaws, and/or any and all

restrictions, reservations, charges, servitudes, assessments, conditions, liens or easements provided for in any contract, deed, declaration or other instrument which (i) shall have been executed pursuant to, or subject to, the provisions of the Declaration, or (ii) otherwise shall indicate that the provisions of such instrument were intended to be enforced by the Association or by Declarant.

5.2 Abatement and Enjoinment of Violations by Owners. In addition to the provisions set forth in Section 5.1 above, the violation of any of the Association Rules or the breach of any provision of the Governing Documents shall also give the Board the right, after notice and hearing, except in case of an emergency, in addition to any other rights set forth in these Bylaws to:

5.2.1 Enter a Lot or common areas in which, or as to which, the violation or breach exists and to summarily abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting Owner, any improvement, structure, thing or condition (except for additions or alterations of a permanent nature that may exist in that Lot) that is existing and creating a danger to the Owners in the Property contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions of the Governing Documents. The Board shall not be deemed liable for any manner of trespass by this action; or

5.2.2 Enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any breach.

5.3 Fine for Violation of Governing Documents. The Board may adopt resolutions providing for fines or other monetary penalties for the infraction of the Governing Documents. Fines will be levied after notice thereof and an opportunity to be heard. Following notice thereof and an opportunity to be heard, the Board may levy fines in amounts that it, in its discretion, shall determine to be reasonable for each violation of the Governing Documents. Before assessing a fine under this Section, the Board shall notify the Owner of the violation and inform the Owner that a fine will be imposed if the violation is not remedied within the time provided in the Governing Documents, which, exigent circumstances excepted, shall be at least three (3) business days. A fine assessed under this Section shall be made only for a violation of a rule, covenant, condition, or restriction that is specifically listed in the Governing Documents, shall be in the amount designated by the Board and shall accrue interest and late fees as determined by the Board in a resolution. Unpaid fines may be collected as an unpaid Community Expenses and shall be secured by a lien pursuant to Section 9.1 of the Declaration ("Assessment Lien"). An Owner who is assessed a fine under this Section may request an informal hearing to protest or dispute the fine within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date the fine is assessed. A hearing requested by an Owner shall be conducted in accordance with the standards adopted by the Board and no interest or late fees may accrue, or lien rights exercised, until after the hearing has been conducted and a final decision has been rendered.

5.4 Rental or Lease of Dwellings by Owners. If an Owner of a Dwelling rents or leases his, her or its Dwelling, then the following terms and conditions shall apply:

5.4.1 Rental Agreement. Any Owner who rents or leases his, her or its Dwelling shall file with the Board or the Manager a copy of the rental or lease agreement affecting the applicable Dwelling. The provisions of these Bylaws shall apply with equal force to the occupants, guests, and tenants ("Occupants") of Dwellings.

5.4.2 Owner Responsible. Any Owner who rents or leases or otherwise permits any other person to utilize his, her or its Dwelling (regardless of duration) shall be responsible for the conduct of his, her or its Occupants, and upon written notice from the Board or the manager, said Owner shall be responsible for correcting violations of the Governing Documents committed by such Occupants.

5.4.3 Tenants' Violations. If an Owner fails to correct violations by his, her or its Occupants upon notice, the Board or the manager shall be deemed to be the agent of the Owner and empowered to take any enforcement action the Owner would be entitled to take, the reasonable costs of such action, including but not limited to fees and costs paid to third parties, to be assessed to the Owner and payable within thirty (30) days of assessment. Such costs shall be collected and enforced in the same manner as Community Expenses and shall be secured by the Assessment Lien.

5.4.4 Remedies for Violations. The power of the Board or the manager hereunder shall include but not be limited to any and all legal remedies available under the laws of the State of Utah. Any Owner by the act of renting or leasing or otherwise permitting any other person to utilize his, her or its Lot shall be deemed to have consented to these procedures and shall indemnify and save harmless the Association, the Board and the manager from and against any and all liability therefor. It is expressly understood that the remedies available to the Association, the Board or manager shall include but not be limited to the right to seek eviction of the Occupant without the Association, the Board or manager incurring any liability to the Owner.

5.4.5 Future Lease Payments. If an Owner who is leasing his, her or its Lot fails to pay Community Expenses levied against his, her or its Dwelling for more than sixty (60) days after the Community Expenses are due, the Board may demand that the Lessee pay to the Association all future lease payments due to the Owner, beginning with the next monthly or other period payment, until the amount due to the Association is paid in full.

5.5 Specific Enforcement. In addition to such other rights as are specifically granted under the Declaration, the Board shall have the power to impose reasonable fines, which shall be secured by the Assessment Lien against the Lot of the violator, and to suspend a Member's right to vote or any person's right to use the common areas for violation of any duty imposed under the Governing Documents; provided, however, nothing herein shall authorize the Board to limit ingress and egress to or from a Lot or to suspend a Member's right to vote due to nonpayment of Community Expenses. In addition, the Board may suspend any services provided by the Association to a Member or the Member's Lot if the Member is more than thirty (30) days delinquent in paying any Community Expenses or other charges owed to the Association. In the event that any Owner or Occupant of a Lot violates the Governing Documents and a fine is imposed, the fine shall first be individually assessed against such Owner or Occupant; provided, however, if the fine is not paid by the Owner or Occupant within the time period set by the Board, the Member shall pay the fine upon notice from the Association. The failure of the Board to enforce any provision of the Governing Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of the Board to do so thereafter.

5.6 Notice. Prior to imposition of any sanction hereunder or under the Declaration, the Board or its delegate shall serve the alleged violator with written notice describing (i) the nature of the alleged violation, (ii) the proposed sanction to be imposed, (iii) a period of not less than fourteen (14) calendar days within which the alleged violator may present a written request for a hearing to the Board; and (iv) a statement that the proposed sanction shall be imposed as contained in the notice unless a challenge is begun within fourteen (14) calendar days of the notice. If a timely challenge is not made, the sanction stated in the notice shall be imposed; provided the Board may, but shall not be obligated to, suspend any proposed sanction if the violation is cured within the 14-day period. Such suspension shall not constitute a waiver of the right to sanction future violations of the same or other provisions and the Association Rules by any Person.

5.7 Additional Enforcement Rights. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article V, the Board may elect to enforce any provision of the Governing Documents by self-help (specifically including, but not limited to, the towing of vehicles that are in violation of parking rules and regulations)

or by suit at law or in equity to enjoin any violation or to recover monetary damages or both without the necessity of compliance with the procedure set forth above. In any such action, to the maximum extent permissible, the Owner or Occupant responsible for the violation of which abatement is sought shall pay all costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees actually incurred.

ARTICLE VI INDEMNIFICATION

6.1 Indemnification of Directors and Officers. To the maximum extent permitted by the Nonprofit Act or any other applicable law, the Association may indemnify any present or former Director, officer, committee member, or employee of the Association (collectively referenced, "Association Officials") in all cases in which an Association may indemnify an Association Official (including the estate, executor, administrator, heirs, legatees, or devisees of each such person). Without limiting the foregoing, the Association may indemnify its Association Officials in all cases in which it may do so under § 16-6a-902 of the Nonprofit Act, and shall indemnify its Association Officials in all cases in which it is required to do so under § 16-6a-903 of the Nonprofit Act. This provision constitutes authorization of indemnification as contemplated in § 16-6a-906 of the Nonprofit Act, so that the Association may indemnify Directors once a determination has been made in the specific case that indemnification is permissible in the circumstances because the Director has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in § 16-6a-902 of the Nonprofit Act, as referenced above. The Association shall consider and act as expeditiously as possible on any and all requests by an Association Official for indemnification.

6.2 Advances of Expenses. Pursuant to the provisions of §§ 16-6a-904 and 16-6a-907 of the Nonprofit Act, if a determination is made, following the procedures of § 16-6a-906 of the Nonprofit Act, that an Association Official has met the statutory requirements for advancement of expenses, and if an authorization of payment is made, following the procedures and standards set forth in § 16-6a-906 of the Nonprofit Act, then the Association may pay for or reimburse the reasonable expenses incurred by an Association Official who is a party to a proceeding in advance of final disposition of the proceeding.

6.3 Scope of Indemnification. The indemnification and advancement of expenses authorized by this Article VI is intended to permit the Association to indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State of Utah any and all persons whom it shall have power to indemnify under such laws from and against any and all of the expenses, disabilities, or other matters referred to in or covered by such laws; notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Association shall have no obligation to indemnify or provide for the advancement of expenses to any Association Official to the extent that such liability, damage, injury or other expense is covered by insurance proceeds.

6.4 Other Rights and Remedies. The rights to indemnification and advancement of expenses provided in this Article VI shall be in addition to any other rights which a party may have or hereafter acquire under any applicable law, contract, order, or otherwise.

6.5 Insurance. The Board shall obtain liability insurance coverage for the officers and Directors of the Association in such amounts as deemed appropriate and adequate by the Board.

6.6 Severability. If any provision of this Article shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this Article shall not be affected or impaired thereby, but shall, to the fullest extent possible, be construed so as to give effect to the intent of this Article that each party covered hereby may be entitled to the fullest protection permitted by law.

ARTICLE VII RECORDS

7.1 Records and Audits. The Association shall maintain financial records, and such other records as required by the Declaration or the Nonprofit Act. The cost of any audit shall be a Community Expense of the Association.

7.2 Examination. The Membership register, books of account and minutes of the meetings of the Association, of the Board and of committees of the Board, and all other records maintained by the Association or manager, shall be made available for examination and copying by any Member or by any of their duly authorized attorneys, at the expense of the Person examining the records during normal business hours and for a non-commercial purpose reasonably related to his, her or its interest as a Member, at the office where the records are maintained. Upon receipt of an authenticated written request from a Member along with the fee prescribed by the Board to defray the costs of reproduction, the manager or other custodian of the records of the Association shall prepare and transmit to the Member a copy of any and all of the records of the Association requested. The Association may, as a condition to permitting an Owner to inspect the membership register or to its furnishing information from the register, require that the Owner agree in writing not to use, or allow the use of, information from the membership register for commercial or other purposes not reasonably related to the regular business of the Association and the Owner's interest in the Association. The Members' inspection privileges do not apply to the personnel records of the employees of the Association and the records of the Association relating to another Member. The Board shall establish reasonable rules with respect to:

7.2.1 Notice to be given to the custodian of the records by the Member desiring to make the inspection;

7.2.2 Hours and days of the week when such an inspection may be made; and

7.2.3 Payment of the cost of reproducing copies of documents requested by a Member.

7.3 Inspection by Directors. Every Director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association, subject only to the right of the Association to require that the Director agree in writing not to use, or allow the use of, the information from the membership register for commercial or other purposes not reasonably related to the business of the Association and the Director's interest in the Association. The right of inspection by a Director includes the right to make a copy of relevant documents at the expense of the Association.

7.4 Records. The books and accounts for the Association shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles under the direction of the Treasurer. At the close of each fiscal year, the books and records of the Association shall be prepared by an independent public accountant approved by the Association, and financial statements shall be prepared by said accountant and distributed to all Members.

ARTICLE VIII COMMUNITY EXPENSES ASSESSMENTS

All Community Expenses shall be made in accordance with the general provisions of the Declaration. The Treasurer shall keep detailed records of all receipts and expenditures, including expenditures affecting the Property, specifying and itemizing the maintenance, repair and replacement

expenses of the Property. Such records shall be available for examination by the Members during regular business hours. In accordance with the actions of the Board in assessing Community Expenses against the Lots and Members, the Treasurer shall keep an accurate record of such Community Expenses and of the payments thereof by each Member.

ARTICLE IX AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS

9.1 By Members. During the Class B Control Period, the Class B Member shall have the right to unilaterally amend these Bylaws for any purpose; provided, that no amendment shall be made after the date of transfer of title of a Lot to an Owner that would adversely affect such Owner without the Owner's consent. Except as provided above, these Bylaws may be amended only by the affirmative vote or written consent, or any combination thereof, of a majority of the Total Votes of the Association. Notwithstanding the above, the percentage of votes necessary to amend a specific clause shall not be less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken under that clause. No amendment may remove, revoke, or modify any right or privilege of, nor impose any obligation upon, Declarant or the Class B Member without the written consent of Declarant, the Class B Member, or the assignee of such right or privilege.

9.2 Limitation on Amendments. In no event shall a change of conditions or circumstances operate to amend any provisions of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE X MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Notices. Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, all notices demands, bills, statements, or other communications under these Bylaws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by United States mail, first class postage prepaid:

10.1.1 If to a Member, at the address which the Member has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address has been designated, at the street address of such Member's Lot; or

10.1.2 If to the Association, the Board, or the manager, at the principal office of the Association or the manager, if any, or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Members pursuant to this Section 10.1.

10.2 Conflicts. If there are conflicts between the provisions of Utah law and Governing Documents, the provisions of Utah law and the Declaration, the Articles, these Bylaws and the Association Rules (in that order) shall prevail.

10.3 Waiver. No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason or any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches which may occur.

10.4 Severability. The provisions of these Bylaws and the invalidity or partial invalidity or unenforceability of any one provision or portion hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

10.5 Captions. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way to define, limit or describe the scope of these Bylaws nor the intent of any provision hereof.

10.6 Use of Technology. In recognition of the opportunities offered through computers and continuing advancements in the high technology fields, the Association may, as a common expense, provide for or offer services, which make use of computers and other technological opportunities. For example, to the extent Utah law permits, and unless otherwise specifically prohibited in these Bylaws, the Association may send required notices by electronic means; hold Board or Association meetings and permit attendance and voting by electronic means; and send and collect Community Expenses and other invoices over the computer.

10.7 Effective Date. These Bylaws shall take effect upon the approving vote of a majority of the Total Votes of the Association.

10.8 Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding anything contained in these Bylaws to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the Association, any Class A or Class B Member and/or any director or officer, nor their respective agents, representatives, affiliates, employees, or contractors, as and to the extent acting in such capacity under these Bylaws, shall be liable to the other for incidental, consequential, reliance, special, punitive, exemplary, or indirect damages arising out of these Bylaws, the Declaration or any Governing Documents, whether by reason of contract, indemnity, strict liability, negligence, breach of warranty or from breach of this Lease, and regardless of whether the parties knew of the possibility that such damages could result, each party hereby releases the other party of such claims. Nothing contained in these Bylaws, however, shall excuse, or be deemed to waive, the performance of the parties respective obligations under these Bylaws, the Declaration or any Governing Documents or, further, limit any liability for (a) willful or intentional misconduct (including gross negligence), (b) bodily injury, death or damage to tangible real or tangible personal property proximately caused by the gross negligent act or intentional misconduct of the Association, any Member or any officer or director, or that of their respective agents, employees, contractors, affiliates, or representatives, or (c) the parties' indemnification obligations, as specified in these Bylaws. Further, notwithstanding any term or condition of these Bylaws, the Declaration or the Governing Documents, and except as and to the extent otherwise specified above, any obligation or liability whatsoever, which may arise at any time under these Bylaws, the Declaration or the Governing Documents shall not be personally binding upon, nor shall resort for the enforcement thereof be had to the property of, the directors, shareholders, officers, employees or agents of the Association or any Member, regardless of whether such obligation or liability is in the nature of contract, tort, or otherwise.

10.9 Seal. The Board may by resolution provide a corporate seal which shall be circular in form and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association, the state of incorporation and the words "Corporate Seal."

[certification follows]


CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Aspen Meadows Southeast Neighborhood Community Association, Inc., a Utah nonprofit corporation;

That the foregoing Bylaws constitute the Bylaws of said Association, as duly adopted at a meeting of the Members held on the 19 day of June, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of said Association (if any) this 12 day of June, 2023.



A. Flint Decker _____

**EXHIBIT A
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION**

LOTS 1 THROUGH 65, INCLUSIVE, ASPEN MEADOWS SOUTHEAST NEIGHBORHOOD, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED ON JULY 19, 2022 AS ENTRY NO. 794328 IN BOOK 1616 AT PAGE 27 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS IN THE OFFICE OF THE IRON COUNTY RECORDER, STATE OF UTAH. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Beginning at the found GLO monument, dated 1924, at the North Quarter Corner of Section 1, Township 36 South, Range 9 West, Salt Lake Base and Meridian; and running

thence North 89°23'26" East 1,459.24 feet along the measured Section line, to the found GLO monument, dated 1924, at the South Quarter Corner of Section 36, Township 35 South, Range 9 West;
thence North 89°41'56" East 1,164.13 feet along the measured Section line, to the found GLO monument, dated 1924, at the Northeast Corner of said Section 1;

thence South 00°50'02" West 743.69 feet along the measured Section line;
thence North 89°10'51" West 214.49 feet;
thence North 46°05'31" West 355.12 feet;
thence North 83°04'56" West 80.87 feet;
thence North 86°51'02" West 262.91 feet to the Easterly Boundary line of the "Steam Engine Meadows Subdivision, Phase 1, Amended", as measured on the ground and located by existing corner markers;

thence along said boundary the following fifteen (15) courses:

- (1) North 37°53'01" West 360.29 feet;
- (2) North 31°48'58" West 50.00 feet;
- (3) North 58°11'02" East 120.95 feet;
- (4) North 31°48'58" West 137.38 feet;
- (5) North 52°46'08" West 167.39 feet;
- (6) North 37°13'52" East 237.77 feet;
- (7) North 52°46'08" West 50.00 feet;
- (8) North 52°46'11" West 399.23 feet;
- (9) South 37°27'15" West 200.00 feet;
- (10) North 52°46'12" West 99.00 feet;
- (11) South 37°13'48" West 800.00 feet;
- (12) North 52°46'12" West 283.87 feet;
- (13) North 52°46'08" West 50.00 feet;
- (14) South 37°13'52" West 333.84 feet;
- (15) North 52°46'04" West 106.34 feet to the Easterly Boundary line of the "Timbercrest Subdivision", according to the official plat thereof;

thence North 00°50'48" East 1,354.62 feet along said Easterly Boundary line to the point of beginning.

Contains 3,487,016 Square Feet or 80.051 Acres.